
 
 

v1 2015 

AGENDA 
 

Meeting Regeneration Committee 

Date Thursday 31 January 2019 

Time 10.00 am 

Place Chamber, City Hall, The Queen's 
Walk, London, SE1 2AA 

Copies of the reports and any attachments may be found at: 
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration-committee 
 
 
Most meetings of the London Assembly and its Committees are webcast live at 
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts where you can also view past 
meetings. 
 
Members of the Committee 
Tony Devenish AM (Chairman) 
Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair) 
Tony Arbour AM 

Nicky Gavron AM 
Dr Onkar Sahota AM 

 

A meeting of the Committee has been called by the Chair of the Committee to deal with the business 

listed below.  

Ed Williams, Executive Director of Secretariat 
Wednesday 23 January 2019 

 
Further Information 
If you have questions, would like further information about the meeting or require special facilities 
please contact: Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officer; Telephone: 020 7983 6559;  
Email: teresa.young@london.gov.uk 
 
For media enquiries please contact, Giles Broadbent, Communications Officer – London Assembly; 
Telephone: 020 7983 4603. 
If you have any questions about individual items please contact the author whose details are at the 
end of the report.  
 
This meeting will be open to the public, except for where exempt information is being discussed as 
noted on the agenda.  A guide for the press and public on attending and reporting meetings of local 
government bodies, including the use of film, photography, social media and other means is available 
at www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.  
 
There is access for disabled people, and induction loops are available.  There is limited underground 
parking for orange and blue badge holders, which will be allocated on a first-come first-served basis.  
Please contact Facilities Management on 020 7983 4750 in advance if you require a parking space or 
further information. 

http://www.london.gov.uk/moderngov/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=303
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts
http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf


 

 
Certificate Number: FS 80233 

If you, or someone you know, needs a copy of the agenda, minutes or reports 
in large print or Braille, audio, or in another language, then please call us on 
020 7983 4100 or email assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.   
 

 
 

mailto:assembly.translations@london.gov.uk


 

3 
 

Agenda 
Regeneration Committee 
Thursday 31 January 2019 
 
 

1 Apologies for Absence and Chairman's Announcements  
 
 To receive any apologies and any announcements from the Chairman. 

 
 

2 Declarations of Interests (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 

Contact:  Teresa Young, teresa.young@london.gov.uk 020 7983 6559 

 

The Committee is recommended to: 

 

(a)  Note the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at 

Agenda Item 2, as disclosable pecuniary interests; 

 

(b)  Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests 

in specific items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the 

Member(s) regarding withdrawal following such declaration(s); and 

 

(c)    Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be 

relevant (including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received 

which are not at the time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register 

of gifts and hospitality, and noting also the advice from the GLA’s 

Monitoring Officer set out at Agenda Item 2) and to note any necessary 

action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s). 
 
 

3 Minutes (Pages 5 - 26) 

 
 The Committee is recommended to confirm the minutes of the meeting of the 

Committee held on 5 September 2018 to be signed by the Chairman as a correct 

record. 
 

 The appendices to the minutes set out on pages 9 to 26 are attached for Members and officers 

only but are available from the following area of the GLA’s website:  

www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration-committee 
 
 

  
 
 

mailto:Teresa.young@london.gov.uk
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration-committee


 

4 
 

4 Summary List of Actions (Pages 27 - 30) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Teresa Young, teresa.young@london.gov.uk 020 7983 6559 

 

The Committee is recommended to note the completed and closed actions arising 

from previous meetings of the Committee. 
 
 

5 Review of GLA Housing Zones Programme (Pages 31 - 34) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Riina Heinonen, riina.heinonen@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 4510 

 

The Committee is recommended to: 

 

(a) Agree the areas for consideration set out in paragraph 4.1 of the report and 

notes the report as background to the discussion with invited guests 

regarding the GLA Housing Zones programme and notes the subsequent 

discussion; and 

 

(b) Delegate authority to the Chairman, in consultation with the Deputy Chair, to 

agree any output from the Committee’s meeting on the GLA Housing Zones 

Programme and any additional activity to support the Committee’s scrutiny 

investigation. 
 
 

6 Regeneration Committee Work Programme (Pages 35 - 36) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Riina Heinonen, riina.heinonen@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 4510 

 

The Committee is recommended to:  

 

(a) Note the progress on its work programme as set out in the report; and 

 

(b) Agree to use its meeting slot on 6 March 2019 for a review of the work of the 

Greater London Authority’s Regeneration Team and to delegate authority to 

the Chairman, in consultation with the Deputy Chair, to agree the scope for 

that meeting.  
 
 

  
 
 

mailto:Teresa.young@london.gov.uk
mailto:riina.heinonen@london.gov.uk
mailto:riina.heinonen@london.gov.uk


 

5 
 

7 Date of Next Meeting  
 
 The next meeting of the Regeneration Committee is scheduled for Wednesday, 6 March 2019 

at 2pm in Committee Room 5, City Hall. 
 
 

8 Any Other Business the Chairman Considers Urgent  
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                      

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk  v2/2018 

 

Subject: Declarations of Interests 
 

Report to: Regeneration Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 31 January 2019 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 
 
 
1. Summary  

 
1.1 This report sets out details of offices held by Assembly Members for noting as disclosable pecuniary 

interests and requires additional relevant declarations relating to disclosable pecuniary interests, and 

gifts and hospitality to be made. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 

2.1 That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table below, be noted 

as disclosable pecuniary interests1; 

2.2 That the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests in specific 

items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the Member(s) regarding 

withdrawal following such declaration(s) be noted; and 

2.3 That the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be relevant 

(including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received which are not at the 

time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register of gifts and hospitality, and 

noting also the advice from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer set out at below) and any 

necessary action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s) be noted. 

 
3. Issues for Consideration  
 
3.1 Relevant offices held by Assembly Members are listed in the table overleaf: 

  

                                                 
1 The Monitoring Officer advises that: Paragraph 10 of the Code of Conduct will only preclude a Member from 
participating in any matter to be considered or being considered at, for example, a meeting of the Assembly, 
where the Member has a direct Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in that particular matter. The effect of this is 
that the ‘matter to be considered, or being considered’ must be about the Member’s interest. So, by way of 
example, if an Assembly Member is also a councillor of London Borough X, that Assembly Member will be 
precluded from participating in an Assembly meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about the 
Member’s role / employment as a councillor of London Borough X; the Member will not be precluded from 
participating in a meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about an activity or decision of London 
Borough X. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



        

Member Interest 

Tony Arbour AM  

Jennette Arnold OBE AM Committee of the Regions  

Gareth Bacon AM Member, LB Bexley 

Shaun Bailey AM  

Sian Berry AM Member, LB Camden 

Andrew Boff AM Congress of Local and Regional Authorities (Council of 
Europe) 

Leonie Cooper AM Member, LB Wandsworth 

Tom Copley AM Member, LB Lewisham 

Unmesh Desai AM  

Tony Devenish AM Member, City of Westminster 

Andrew Dismore AM  

Len Duvall AM  

Florence Eshalomi AM  

Nicky Gavron AM  

Susan Hall AM Member, LB Harrow 

David Kurten AM  

Joanne McCartney AM Deputy Mayor 

Steve O’Connell AM Member, LB Croydon  

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM  

Keith Prince AM Alternate Member, European Committee of the Regions 

Caroline Russell AM Member, LB Islington 

Dr Onkar Sahota AM  

Navin Shah AM  

Fiona Twycross AM Deputy Mayor for Fire and Resilience; Chair of the London 
Local Resilience Forum 

Peter Whittle AM  
 

[Note: LB - London Borough] 
 

3.2 Paragraph 10 of the GLA’s Code of Conduct, which reflects the relevant provisions of the Localism 

Act 2011, provides that:  
 

- where an Assembly Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered 
or being considered or at  

 

(i) a meeting of the Assembly and any of its committees or sub-committees; or  
 

(ii) any formal meeting held by the Mayor in connection with the exercise of the Authority’s 
functions  

 

- they must disclose that interest to the meeting (or, if it is a sensitive interest, disclose the fact 
that they have a sensitive interest to the meeting); and  

 

- must not (i) participate, or participate any further, in any discussion of the matter at the 
meeting; or (ii) participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the meeting 

 

UNLESS 
 

- they have obtained a dispensation from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer (in accordance with 
section 2 of the Procedure for registration and declarations of interests, gifts and hospitality – 
Appendix 5 to the Code).    

 

3.3 Failure to comply with the above requirements, without reasonable excuse, is a criminal offence; as is 

knowingly or recklessly providing information about your interests that is false or misleading. 

Page 2



        

3.4 In addition, the Monitoring Officer has advised Assembly Members to continue to apply the test that 

was previously applied to help determine whether a pecuniary / prejudicial interest was arising - 

namely, that Members rely on a reasonable estimation of whether a member of the public, with 

knowledge of the relevant facts, could, with justification, regard the matter as so significant that it 

would be likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest.  

3.5 Members should then exercise their judgement as to whether or not, in view of their interests and 

the interests of others close to them, they should participate in any given discussions and/or 

decisions business of within and by the GLA. It remains the responsibility of individual Members to 

make further declarations about their actual or apparent interests at formal meetings noting also 

that a Member’s failure to disclose relevant interest(s) has become a potential criminal offence. 

3.6 Members are also required, where considering a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person 

from whom they have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25 within the 

previous three years or from the date of election to the London Assembly, whichever is the later, to 

disclose the existence and nature of that interest at any meeting of the Authority which they attend 

at which that business is considered.  

3.7 The obligation to declare any gift or hospitality at a meeting is discharged, subject to the proviso set 

out below, by registering gifts and hospitality received on the Authority’s on-line database. The on-

line database may be viewed here:  

 https://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.  

3.8 If any gift or hospitality received by a Member is not set out on the on-line database at the time of 

the meeting, and under consideration is a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person from 

whom a Member has received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25, Members 

are asked to disclose these at the meeting, either at the declarations of interest agenda item or when 

the interest becomes apparent.  

3.9 It is for Members to decide, in light of the particular circumstances, whether their receipt of a gift or 

hospitality, could, on a reasonable estimation of a member of the public with knowledge of the 

relevant facts, with justification, be regarded as so significant that it would be likely to prejudice the 

Member’s judgement of the public interest. Where receipt of a gift or hospitality could be so 

regarded, the Member must exercise their judgement as to whether or not, they should participate in 

any given discussions and/or decisions business of within and by the GLA. 

 

4. Legal Implications 
 

4.1 The legal implications are as set out in the body of this report. 

 
5. Financial Implications 
 

5.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

Contact Officer: Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officer 

Telephone: 020 7983 6559 

E-mail: teresa.young@london.gov.uk 

 

Page 3

https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/governance-and-spending/good-governance/gifts-and-hospitality
mailto:teresa.young@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



                                                                      

 
 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

MINUTES 
 

Meeting: Regeneration Committee 
Date: Wednesday 5 September 2018 
Time: 2.00 pm 
Place: Chamber, City Hall, The Queen's 

Walk, London, SE1 2AA 
 
Copies of the minutes may be found at:  

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration 

 

 
Present: 
 
Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman) 
Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair) 
Tony Devenish AM 
Nicky Gavron AM 
Dr Onkar Sahota AM 
 
 

1   Apologies for Absence and Chairman's Announcements (Item 1) 

 

1.1 There were no apologies for absence. 

 
 
2   Declarations of Interests (Item 2) 

 

2.1 Resolved: 

 

That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at 

Agenda Item 2, be noted as disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration


Greater London Authority 
Regeneration Committee 

Wednesday 5 September 2018 

 

 
 

3   Minutes (Item 3) 

 

3.1 Resolved: 

 

That the minutes of the Regeneration Committee meeting held on 4 July 2018 be 

signed by the Chair as a correct record. 

 
 
4   Summary List of Actions (Item 4) 

 

4.1 Resolved: 

 

That the completed and ongoing actions arising from previous meetings of the 

Committee be noted. 

 
 
5   Social Regeneration of Neighbourhoods (Item 5) 

 
5.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat as  

background to a discussion with the invited guests on the social regeneration of 

neighbourhoods, in particular, North Kensington.  

 

5.2 The Chair welcomed the following invited guests to the meeting: 

 Councillor Kim Taylor-Smith, Deputy Leader, Royal Borough of Kensington and 

Chelsea; 

 Doug Goldring, Director of Housing Management, Royal Borough of Kensington and 

Chelsea; 

 James Caspell, Neighbourhood Director for Lancaster West, Royal Borough of 

Kensington and Chelsea; and 

 Louise Duggan, Area Manager, North West Regeneration Team, Greater London 

Authority. 
 

5.3 A transcript of the discussion is attached at Appendix 1. 

 

5.4 During the course of the discussion, the Director of Housing Management, Royal Borough of 

Kensington and Chelsea, undertook to provide a copy of the Recovery Plan once it had been 

finalised. 

 

5.5 At the end of the discussion, the Chair thanked the guests for their attendance and helpful 

contributions to the meeting. 

 

 

Page 6



Greater London Authority 
Regeneration Committee 

Wednesday 5 September 2018 

 

 
 

5.6 Resolved: 

 

(a) That the areas for consideration as set out in paragraph 4.1 of the report be 

agreed and the report as background to the discussion with invited guests 

regarding the social regeneration of neighbourhoods and the subsequent 

discussion be noted; and 

 

(b) That authority be delegated to the Chairman, in consultation with the Deputy 

Chair, to agree any output from the Committee’s meeting on the social 

regeneration of neighbourhoods in North Kensington and any additional 

activity to support the Committee’s scrutiny investigation of the social 

regeneration of neighbourhoods. 

 
 
6   Regeneration Committee Work Programme (Item 6) 

 

6.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 
 

6.2 Resolved: 

 

(a) That the Regeneration Committee’s updated work programme, as set out in 

the report, be agreed. 

 

(b) That the action taken by the Chairman, following consultation with the 

Deputy Chair, to agree the use of the meeting slot on 5 September 2018 for 

a scrutiny review of the social regeneration of neighbourhoods and that in 

advance of that meeting, the Chairman and Deputy Chair attended a site visit 

to Curve Community Centre on 21 August 2018, be noted. 

 

(c) That authority be delegated to the Chairman, in consultation with the 

Deputy Chair, to agree the terms of reference and scope for the Committee’s 

scrutiny review of the barriers to employment experienced by young 

Londoners and any other activity to support that review.  

 

(d) That the Committee’s meeting slot on 6 November 2018 be used for a site 

visit to support the Committee’s scrutiny review of the social regeneration of 

neighbourhoods and that authority be delegated to the Chairman, in 

consultation with the Deputy Chair, to agree the arrangements for that site 

visit. 

 

(e) That it be noted that as part of its scrutiny review of the regeneration of the 

Royal Docks, the Committee will meet with community representatives in 

September 2018. 

 

Page 7



Greater London Authority 
Regeneration Committee 

Wednesday 5 September 2018 

 

 
 

 
7   Date of Next Meeting (Item 7) 

 

7.1 The date of the next meeting was scheduled for Wednesday, 10 October 2018 at 10am in the 

Chamber, City Hall. 

 
 
8   Any Other Business the Chairman Considers Urgent (Item 8) 

 
8.1 There was no other business the Chair considered urgent. 

 
 
9   Close of Meeting 

 
9.1 The meeting ended at 3.20pm. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
    

Chairman   Date 
 
Contact Officer: Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officer; Telephone: 020 7983 6559;  

email: teresa.young@london.gov.uk 
 

Page 8



 

 
 

Appendix 1  
 

London Assembly Regeneration Committee – 5 September 2018 
Transcript of Item 5 - Social Regeneration of Neighbourhoods 

 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  We now move to our main item focusing on the social regeneration of 

neighbourhoods, in particular North Kensington.  I would just like to introduce our guests, Councillor 

Kim Taylor-Smith, Doug Goldring, James Caspell and Louise Duggan.  How are you?  I did not say that most of 

you are from [The Royal Borough of] Kensington and Chelsea.   

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  As is tradition in our committees, I as the Chairman will ask the first question.  

Because we have so many Members most of our questions will be directed to a particular person but if you 

have a dying issue that you think we have missed, please do come in.  In the interests of brevity, we will try to 

focus on who we think can give us the answer.   

 

Our opening question will be this: how did you develop and agree the ten key principles?  Have these come 

from residents?  Let us start with Councillor Taylor-Smith. 

 

Councillor Kim Taylor-Smith (Deputy Leader, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  First of all, 

thank you.  Thank you for inviting us today.  Just by way of explanation, we have our Director of Housing and 

also the gentleman who is in charge of our Lancaster West Estate.  My specific responsibility is obviously 

housing and the regeneration of Grenfell.   

 

May I also start by saying that we were anticipating having somebody who would be able to talk about care 

support today.  We do not have an officer from care support, who was able to attend, so I will endeavour to 

answer the questions.  To the extent that I cannot, I am very happy to give a written answer to those 

questions.   

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Sorry, any answer you feel like you cannot provide we will just have to write 

to you? 

 

Councillor Kim Taylor-Smith (Deputy Leader, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  Yes, it 

might be better for me to refer it and do it as a written reply, if that is acceptable.   

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  OK.  Thank you. 

 

Councillor Kim Taylor-Smith (Deputy Leader, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  In terms 

of the ten, how did we develop it?  Is -- 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Please, Doug, if you feel you are better placed -- 

 

Councillor Kim Taylor-Smith (Deputy Leader, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  I was just 

going say I think it is better that Doug does cover that. 

 

Doug Goldring (Director of Housing Management, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  I 

think -- 

 

Page 9



 

 
 

James Caspell (Neighbourhood Director for Lancaster West, Royal Borough of Kensington and 

Chelsea):  I can answer if you like.  It was quite clear in the context of the Grenfell Tower tragedy that 

resident engagement was something that absolutely needed to take place and that the refurbishment would 

need to be resident-led.  As a result, the Lancaster West Neighbourhood Team met with the Lancaster West 

Residents’ Association, which represents the 795 households on the estate, and talked about those ten key 

principles which you have seen.  They are very much overarching aims of the refurbishment programme, really 

to try to give some assurance to residents and also something set in stone that they could hold the Council to 

account over.  Given the tragedy that occurred and its aftermath - and, to be fair, the experience of housing 

management before the Grenfell Tower fire - it was quite clear that being seen to listen and act was pivotal.  I 

think what you see in those ten principles is exactly that.  Any refurbishment work needs to be done 

sensitively, in cooperation with residents rather than being done to them. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  What level of involvement did residents have in finalising these ten key 

principles? 

 

Doug Goldring (Director of Housing Management, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  The 

Residents’ Association worked with our staff on the estate and co-wrote it with us.  These were the things they 

felt they wanted to see in there.  They took that to their wider group and got it signed off.  That is my 

understanding.  This was done at the start of the refurbishment discussions before we then moved to the next 

stage. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  How representative is the residents’ group?  Is it very active?  Is it a large 

residents’ group? 

 

James Caspell (Neighbourhood Director for Lancaster West, Royal Borough of Kensington and 

Chelsea):  Again, unsurprisingly given the context we are operating in, the Residents’ Association meetings 

are easily among the best-attended I have seen.  I have only been working for Lancaster West for four and a 

half months now but prior to that we are talking probably 60% of households represented.  It was literally 

standing room only.  In terms of the diversity - and I know we are going to talk about diversity later - I would 

say it is extremely representative of the various community groups.  Interestingly, Lancaster West is quite a 

complex estate in terms of tenure.  We have shared owners, we have temporary accommodation residents, 

obviously, general needs tenants, leaseholders who live on the estate and leaseholders who do not live on the 

estate.  What is positive is that both the committee and the general meetings reflect that complexity. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Over what period of time were these ten statements refined down to the 

final ten, just roughly? 

 

James Caspell (Neighbourhood Director for Lancaster West, Royal Borough of Kensington and 

Chelsea):  It was very much an iterative process.  My predecessor led on this, so I do not have the specifics but 

to give you a flavour of how we are doing things, we go every week to the Residents’ Association Committee 

meetings, where they invite us, and on a weekly basis we have those discussions.  In the spirit of how we are 

working now, I would imagine you would be talking a number of weeks.  There would have been some 

back-and-forth.  As you can see, they are quite plain English and they are quite tangible and I think that is a 

reflection of listening to what is important to residents. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  At what point do you expect, as a Council, the residents to hold you to 

account for these ten principles? 

 

Page 10



 

 
 

James Caspell (Neighbourhood Director for Lancaster West, Royal Borough of Kensington and 

Chelsea):  On a daily basis, to be honest with you. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  These principles now are ongoing? 

 

James Caspell (Neighbourhood Director for Lancaster West, Royal Borough of Kensington and 

Chelsea):  Absolutely.  I think it is fair to say, in terms of shaping the Lancaster West Neighbourhood Team as 

a housing office, if you like, we have embodied that in a number of ways.   

 

For all frontline staff, when we recruit them the residents are involved as much as they want to be on the 

panel.  There were two residents on my own panel.  No frontline members of staff are appointed without 

residents being satisfied that they have had the opportunity to be engaged.  That is just in terms of 

formulating the team.  In terms of advertising and recruiting, we have done that in a different way to a typical 

council approach.  We have used community organisations and we have gone back to putting notices on local 

noticeboards saying we are looking for a new Repairs Team, for example.   

 

We are having people come in and out.  We are based literally underneath the estate in one of the three 

walkway blocks that is attached to the tower and Grenfell Walk.  Physically we are among the community.  We 

try to be as accessible and as porous as we can be.  Increasingly, where we have been recruiting a workforce 

that reflects the community, we have been able to have conversations with people that I hope are helping to 

give people some assurance that we are embodying these ten commitments. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Before I pass you on to my colleague, Navin Shah [AM], my final question is 

this: to what extent are other residents and other social tenants in the Royal Borough of Kensington and 

Chelsea (RBKC) receiving the same principles?  Are these now universal for the Council or is it just in 

Lancaster West? 

 

Doug Goldring (Director of Housing Management, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  No, 

these are just for Lancaster West at the present moment in time.  We have taken on the management of the 

overall housing stock, but the management of Lancaster West came back prior to that.  It came back in 

September of last year [2017].  We have put in a model of delivery at Lancaster West that we hope to learn 

from.  We have a number of resident groups set up where we are discussing the future housing management 

arrangements and also the level of service that they would wish to see and how that may be delivered.  We 

expect to take some of that learning and be able to extrapolate that across our stock. 

 

Councillor Kim Taylor-Smith (Deputy Leader, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  Can I just 

add to that?  Obviously when the housing management was effectively given back to us on 1 March [2018] it 

was done under a commitment that what would happen would be very much resident-led, with residents at the 

heart of that.  We immediately started the process of reinstating all the meetings that we had had and 

extending that to give residents the opportunity to come and hold us to account in terms of what we were 

doing on the day-to-day management of their housing, but also, most importantly, creating an independent, 

resident-driven panel in terms of assessing how they would wish to future engage with us and also how they 

would want their housing management to be done.  That has proved to be very successful.  We used, 

deliberately, an independent firm of consultants who would manage that process to ensure that residents felt 

that they were getting heard by the Council and the Council officers.  That is a process that is in place at the 

moment.   

 

Page 11



 

 
 

Lancaster West is one of what could be a number of models that we could look at for the wider estates with 

the Royal Borough.  A lot of people want it to remain with housing to be managed by the Council, but some 

people are looking at the model of how Lancaster West is proudly run.  At the time we felt it was very 

important to put people on the ground on the estate themselves, in order to develop those close bonds and 

liaise with the local residents, which you obviously cannot do remotely when you are looking at all the estates 

within the Borough. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Thank you.   

 

Tony Devenish AM:  Good afternoon, gentleman and lady.  I am not sure who wants to answer but the 

question is: will the principles be accompanied by measurable targets so that residents can know how you are 

meeting these principles? 

 

James Caspell (Neighbourhood Director for Lancaster West, Royal Borough of Kensington and 

Chelsea):  Absolutely.  We are in the process of reviewing a suite of key performance indicators.  There are the 

typical things that you see in housing management in terms of satisfaction with housing services, satisfaction 

with being listened to and heard, and satisfaction with repairs.  We are in the process now of introducing what 

I believe is a more sophisticated method of measuring those.   

 

Historically the Kensington and Chelsea Tenant Management Organisation measured its satisfaction surveys 

in-house.  In my view, the housing sector is best placed not to do that, otherwise it would stand accused of 

marking its own homework.  We are in the process of developing those with an independent third-party 

provider, and rather than just relying on postal feedback, we are looking at using text messages, phone calls 

and other digital solutions.  There are more qualitative measures that are being embodied at the moment.  

Following the development of the principles we have held two significant engagement days - we called them 

Ideas Days - on the estate.  Again, I would say well over 50% of all households were represented.  We had over 

500 people at both of those days.  They were, again, extremely successful.   

 

I apologise to those who know this but Lancaster West is an extremely diverse estate in terms of its 

architecture.  The earliest building is exactly from 1930 while the oldest one is from 1980.  That diversity 

means that from a stock point of view there are particular challenges to refurbishment but, as with social 

housing across the country, it is the people as well who are experiencing a number of challenges.  We have 

found it important to ensure that at the fortnightly Refurbishment Steering Group residents are well 

represented.  Again, there is an open invitation to any resident who wishes to attend.   

 

In terms of some of the measures, we are at the stage now where we have just opened our first demonstration 

flat.  What we have done there is, like a show flat, stripped it back to the brick so that residents themselves, 

who are not experts in refurbishment or regeneration, can see the challenges we will face as a landlord in that.  

The key to co-design is that any information we have is also available to residents.  I am pleased to say that in 

the week we had the demonstration flat open we had 76 attendees from those blocks with that archetype, out 

of 360 households.  Again, very high levels of engagement.  We had 186 pieces of feedback that are helping 

us to shape, as we go along, what the priorities need to be on a block-by-block basis. 

 

Tony Devenish AM:  Thank you.  That is really helpful.  To take one example in terms of principles being 

translated into action, maybe principle 7, could you explain how you will ensure that the residents will benefit 

from new jobs and training, please? 

 

Page 12



 

 
 

James Caspell (Neighbourhood Director for Lancaster West, Royal Borough of Kensington and 

Chelsea):  Absolutely.  As I mentioned before, developing a workforce reflective of the community is 

something that in the London context is absolutely vital.  In terms of the Neighbourhood Team, there are 

about 25 of us, including myself.  About eight of those are repairs operatives.  I mentioned before how we 

have engaged and advertised with community groups.  We have adopted a more flexible approach to recruiting 

in terms of the core hours that people could work.  That has helped, for example, a young single mother from a 

black and minority ethnic (BAME) group work with us where otherwise she would not have been able to take 

up that opportunity.  I am pleased to say, given the estate is around 80% BAME residents, we have recruited 

out of that 25, three Somali colleagues, an Iranian colleague and two Moroccan colleagues who have started 

with us.  Three of those are residents of the estate and another three are residents of the nearby 

Silchester Estate.   

 

We have started to embody that.  The reason that is important, even though we are talking about 

refurbishment, is that it starts to build trust that we will do the things you have told us are important.  If we do 

not do that, people will say, “You are just talking about local jobs.  Why are you not dong it now?”  That has 

been pivotal and that is something we have started to bring to life. 

 

Tony Devenish AM:  Thank you.  That is really helpful.  Finally, in terms of managing expectations, could you 

just give me a bit of an idea about the timescale for what is a very lengthy process?  Everybody at City Hall 

regeneration knows regeneration is not quick. 

 

Doug Goldring (Director of Housing Management, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  At 

the moment we have had the feedback from the ideas days and they are being costed up.  We suspect there 

will be a crunch time coming up pretty soon in terms of what resources we have and what the expectations are.  

I suspect we will have a discussion then around whether we can close that gap by levering in additional 

resources or changing what we are going to deliver.  We expect that to be completed by the end of this 

calendar year, in the next three months or so.  Then after that there is a process of procurement, involving 

residents in procurement, and then overseeing the work on-site and so on and so forth.  We have told 

residents that we do not expect to be on-site doing any of the major works until next summer [2019] at the 

earliest. 

 

Tony Devenish AM:  Thank you very much.   

 

Nicky Gavron AM:  This is for Louise, our Greater London Authority (GLA) representative here.  There is a lot 

of emphasis in regeneration now on integrating material and social objectives.  I am wondering whether you 

can give us some examples of where it has been integrated or linked in successfully in schemes in London. 

 

Louise Duggan (Area Manager, NW Regeneration Team, Greater London Authority (GLA)):  Thanks 

for the question and thanks for having me this afternoon.  It is a really interesting and challenging context that 

we are examining here, and I guess that is the first comment to make.  It is a unique context.  It is a very 

distinct event that has led to responses being required.   

 

I can talk briefly about a couple of things that we have done in the Regeneration Team over the last 

12 months, working within the area.  One of those is focused on the business community and the impact of 

the fire on businesses in the local area.  Many of them are small and medium enterprises (SMEs) and many of 

them led by people from BAME backgrounds.   

 

Page 13



 

 
 

There is a Business Continuity Fund that was set up in response to the fire -- well, it was set up in response to 

the [London Bridge] terror attack but it was adapted to be deployed in Kensington and Chelsea (K&C).  It 

looked at the immediate impact on small businesses of the fire, businesses that were either in the shadow or 

were within the Lancaster estate and part of the cordon.  There were direct, immediate impacts on them.  The 

figures I have here say that there was £178,000 made available for that fund and 26 different awards have 

been made to help.  I know that is not necessarily talking about community in a residential context, but it does 

talk about the local business community and supporting them.   

 

Nicky Gavron AM:  Yes.  It is part of the social fabric, is it not, and the economic fabric? 

 

Louise Duggan (Area Manager, NW Regeneration Team, GLA):  Yes, absolutely, and again it is 

something we have seen in the Borough.  We saw back in 2011 insurance processes taking a long time to come 

through and therefore needing to have a direct bit of financial support that could help people to weather that 

storm.   

 

The Regeneration Team has been working with the Westway Trust since last summer, again in coordination 

with colleagues from RBKC.  They made an application to the Growth Fund -- 

 

Nicky Gavron AM:  Can you just say what the Westway Trust is? 

 

Louise Duggan (Area Manager, NW Regeneration Team, GLA):  The Westway Trust is the trust that was 

set up in the 1970s to manage 23 hectares of land underneath the Westway.  Colleagues here probably know 

more of the detail than I do but they were set up to represent the community and look after that land, with the 

aspiration that it would be managed for the community interest.  They had come to us with a specific 

development proposal.  The application was, I think, about a month after the Grenfell [Tower fire] had 

happened and we took the view that the most important thing to do in this context was to take time, to invest 

time, but also to build relationships.  The last thing we wanted to do was go in with a kneejerk response and be 

seen to make something happen but for that not to reflect the aspirations of the local community. 

 

Since then we have been working with colleagues, as I said, from the Council and from the Westway Trust to 

define a process that would allow a strategic approach to the management of all that land because it is an 

asset held in trust for the community, to coordinate the two main landowners, being the Westway Trust and 

RBKC, and to develop a coordinated strategy for how that space is managed, improved and updated in 

response to what the contemporary community aspirations are.   

 

Nicky Gavron AM:  I am listening carefully, but it sounds very abstract. 

 

Louise Duggan (Area Manager, NW Regeneration Team, Greater London Authority):  Sorry.  I will 

make it a bit more concrete. 

 

Nicky Gavron AM:  Yes, make it more concrete. 

 

Louise Duggan (Area Manager, NW Regeneration Team, GLA):  The idea is we are given some funding 

to allow them to do a study that will set out a strategy for all the landholdings across those 23 hectares, which 

will in turn allow them to access Good Growth funding in round three, next summer, to unlock specific projects 

in that area. 

 

Nicky Gavron AM:  Will these projects come from the residents? 

Page 14



 

 
 

 

Louise Duggan (Area Manager, NW Regeneration Team, GLA):  That is exactly the point I was getting 

to.  Instead of rushing something through last summer, we thought that it was important that the time was 

taken to build a process that would allow it not only to take account of resident views but to be defined and 

driven by those views.  The stage we are at right now is that a commission has gone out.  We have worked 

across ourselves, Westway [Trust] and RBKC to define a process that is very much a co-design process so that 

the local community, the business and resident community, is part of defining the priorities and identifying 

opportunities, and then seeking funding from the Good Growth Fund or any other funder to deliver those 

projects.  Those are the two main responses that our team has been involved in, in the GLA. 

 

Speaking about examples across London where the integration of the social and the physical is exemplary is 

harder because every incidence that you can point out, people can contest.  What I can say is that in the last 

two years there has been a concerted effort to understand better how processes of engagement and 

regeneration can begin to be measured and examined in terms of the social impact.   

 

For instance, up in Tottenham, where we have been working for some time, in the last two years they have 

developed a regeneration charter.  The idea was a shift in the framing of Tottenham from a place of need to a 

place where developers - I am paraphrasing an officer here - who had the great honour of being allowed to 

develop in Tottenham could sign up to all these wider regeneration objectives that were established and 

agreed in collaboration with the community.  That is an interesting example where you can talk about 

delivering over a long term of bricks and mortar, essentially, but you can leverage that process to generate 

opportunities for the local community in terms of jobs and training opportunities, as well as giving back 

through investment in local green spaces and local community assets.  That is quite an interesting 

methodology.  It does not have to be overcomplicated but can link the physical and social dimensions of 

regeneration.   

 

Nicky Gavron AM:  Part of the question is where it has been done successfully.  It is very much a work in 

progress, Tottenham, is it not? 

 

Louise Duggan (Area Manager, NW Regeneration Team, GLA):  Absolutely. 

 

Nicky Gavron AM:  How many years now?  Two, three?   

 

Louise Duggan (Area Manager, NW Regeneration Team, GLA):  2011, in response to the riots, was when 

things were scaled up there, but in terms of the actual delivery I would say things began to get more defined in 

2014.  I would say it was been four years of concerted effort.  That has obviously hit bumps along the way as 

well. 

 

Nicky Gavron AM:  This Committee has looked at the Olympics and the impact of the convergence concept.  

I wonder if you have anything to say about that because that really did try to make sure that physical 

regeneration was integrated and that it lifted the lives of people in the neighbourhood so that you did not just 

create a gilded enclave.  Can you just give us another example of something successful? 

 

Louise Duggan (Area Manager, NW Regeneration Team, GLA):  In the context of the Olympics I think it 

is quite interesting how examining the edges of the place where you are intervening is really important, to 

make it porous, understanding the impact of that major investment.  It was investment on a scale that is hard 

to compare.  It is understanding how that impacts on the edge and how the edge of that physical space is 

Page 15



 

 
 

made porous, allowing opportunities for residents and businesses to not only physically access these new 

facilities but also to make something for themselves, for small businesses to have opportunities.   

 

Thinking about Fish Island, the planning framework that was established there was quite interesting in terms of 

ensuring that space for SMEs was maintained and also that some of the distinctive physical fabric of that space 

was protected.  These were not the things that you would normally think of as heritage assets but they are the 

industrial heritage assets, if you like, of that part of the world.  That is another interesting example.   

 

There is the work that the Old Oak and Park Royal Development Corporation (OPDC) is doing, being within a 

particular place and having the planning powers for that particular area, as well as understanding how you are a 

good neighbour and working across boundaries.  There is some interesting work happening across boundaries 

with Harlesden and with Hammersmith and Fulham looking at the parks and green spaces there.  Where there 

are big processes of regeneration, being attentive to the edges and being attentive to the opportunities, small 

and big, around those edges, and allowing the existing communities to access the opportunities -- 

 

Nicky Gavron AM:  Yes.  The only thing I would say, from listening to what you are talking about, is that the 

social element is not very prominent.  I can see that putting money into parks and green spaces and so on, as 

long as it is done in collaboration, can build social capital and social networks, but the examples are not leaping 

out at me.  There are examples of good economic input, but -- 

 

Louise Duggan (Area Manager, NW Regeneration Team, GLA):  I guess I am not making myself clear 

enough.  In the context of the Harlesden collaboration across the OPDC boundaries, what you are seeing is a 

larger-scale process being leveraged by a town centre that is on an edge, that has not had a lot of attention in 

the past and that has social challenges and issues.  It is a good example of where a better-resourced team is 

supporting a less well-resourced team to develop things.  That ranges from town centre strategies and 

engaging with Neighbourhood Forums to things like developing a strategy for the canal, which is a major edge 

in that part of the world.  It is seeing how small organisations like local canoeing clubs and micro-scale 

organisations can be supported to leverage that bigger-scale change that is happening.  I am not sure if that -- 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  We are going to have to move on, but some of the comparisons are tricky.  

The scale of the [Queen Elizabeth] Olympic Park and the scale of the OPDC is not relevant to Lancaster West, 

and Lancaster West is very different to those places.  Lancaster West is, in and of itself, a destination for the 

people who live there.  What is missing from your models around the social development is that when you 

physically do a place like King’s Cross, the social development does not come from King’s Cross, it comes from 

everyone coming in to it.  Some of the development for Lancaster West is about helping the residents gain 

employment elsewhere and be involved in other things because, whatever happens, they will always be coming 

back to Lancaster West.  The issue is: what are they bringing back when they come back?   

 

It is very easy to do an Olympic Park and have everybody rush in because it is great, the Olympic Park, and 

they are bringing their resource.  When you talk about regenerating people, Lancaster West people are wanting 

better employment, better education and better training.  Not all of that needs to happen on Lancaster West 

physically but it can start from there.  Whoever is integrating with the residents needs to say, “Look, these are 

the opportunities that are available in all of London.  We will help you find those, not just a few that we can 

generate here”.  With the best will in the world, the regeneration of the estate will not provide enough 

employment on the estate.  You need that.  That needs to be part of your reckoning whenever the GLA does 

anything.  It is not just about that point, it is about how that point leads to other places, the Royal Docks, City, 

wherever.  Then you get to regenerate the people, not so much the physical space.  But enough from me. 

 

Page 16



 

 
 

Nicky Gavron AM:  There is nobody who can talk about how we are going to do the integration -- 

 

Tony Devenish AM:  The officers can, yes.  The Deputy Leader can.   

 

Doug Goldring (Director of Housing Management, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  

There is a Recovery Plan, yes. 

 

Nicky Gavron AM:  Yes.  In fact, Shaun [Bailey AM] just said a bit about it but could you talk to us about the 

way you see the social and the material, as it is called, or the physical, linked in and integrated?  I do not think 

we have heard enough about the social.  Even what Shaun said, although it has an impact on the social, is very 

much about the economic lifting of the residents.  Of course, that does lead to stronger social capital and so 

on but I just think we ought to talk a bit more about pure social thinking. 

 

Councillor Kim Taylor-Smith (Deputy Leader, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  Yes.  Just 

to add to that in terms of business support, we are very grateful for the GLA support that we have had.  In 

total I think it was £500,000 of support that we gave to businesses directly affected by the fire.   

 

Going back to your question, one initiative that we were doing is that from the very early stages, the 

immediate aftermath, there were a lot of people coming to us requiring support, facilities and space in order to 

create their own initiatives.  What we did is we commissioned, first of all, an immediate community asset review 

to work out all the assets, not only the assets owned by the Council but also by third parties, that could be 

made available for all forms of support, including business support and so on.  Having identified physical assets 

we then commissioned local people to set it up as almost a skills audit rather than just an asset review, looking 

at the skills they have within the local community and also what the needs of that local community were.  That 

is ongoing process going on at the moment, so that we can better support and link that back in to the physical 

assets and providing social support. 

 

Nicky Gavron AM:  Can you tell me something about what has been done with and for young people? 

 

Councillor Kim Taylor-Smith (Deputy Leader, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  For young 

people, as I say, there are a number of very good organisations within North Kensington that we obviously 

provide support to.  We do a lot of initiatives and those are just ongoing things that are going on at the 

moment.  In terms of specific things, obviously the big thing - just to highlight it, I think, before you go on to 

that - is the announcement of the Kensington Aldridge Academy, which is something I would like to recognise 

as being very important.  They have moved back to the school.  This is obviously very much a part of helping to 

assist in terms of the immediate Lancaster West areas and bring back that community there.  We are still 

suffering from a situation whereby we have quite a lot of number of homes empty within the Lancaster West 

estate and it is important for us to get people back.  There are a number of initiatives all being dealt with 

locally as far as local schools.   

 

I do not know if you have anything specific to Lancaster West to cover. 

 

James Caspell (Neighbourhood Director for Lancaster West, Royal Borough of Kensington and 

Chelsea):  I believe you have been to the Curve [Community Centre].  You visited the Curve recently so you 

will be aware of some of the opportunities that are there.  There is a quite comprehensive summer programme.   

 

As a Neighbourhood Team we are engaging with the Lancaster West Residents’ Association, who have set up 

their own youth forum.  We are providing them with the basics that are needed to support them in their own 

Page 17



 

 
 

ability to build up the capacity to provide youth facilities, and one of the things we are currently looking to do 

is to convert an old office on the estate into a community centre.  We have sat down with them.  The local 

authority has granted a budget.  They have also been successful in securing charity funding as well.  We are 

working with them as a Residents’ Association to tell us what is needed on the estate.   

 

At the moment, given what has happened, there is a lot of goodwill toward Lancaster West and there are a lot 

of excellent organisations that are offering services.  Our role as a Neighbourhood Team is making sure those 

services are reaching the very young people.  Given that post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD) is absolutely rife 

and given 20% of all our residents are under 18, not everybody is necessarily feeling able to go to the existing 

centres.  There is a fantastic leisure centre in the estate.  Our role is making sure those services, and the 

services that residents themselves are developing, reach the parts of the community that currently are not 

being reached. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair):  I have a couple of questions in relation to the diversity of the community 

that we are talking about, to give a context to the question on diversity.  It is important to put on record that 

in Notting Dale, the ward where the estate is located, some 19.5% of the community are of black British origin, 

but on the estate itself 70% of the residents are of BAME origin, often the kind of community who are a silent 

majority.  Now coming to the question itself, when we visited the Curve Community Centre we heard criticism 

that there was a lack of understanding of diversity, both historically as well as in the context of the immediate 

response to the fire.  The question is: what is the Council doing to respond better to the diversity of the 

community it serves, now and in the future, and whether you appreciate their aspirations and needs? 

 

James Caspell (Neighbourhood Director for Lancaster West, Royal Borough of Kensington and 

Chelsea):  If I take that question from a housing point of view, the first thing is to understand the community 

that we are providing services to.  I think all public agencies have an obligation to do that.  We have 

undertaken what we have called a ‘getting to know you’ exercise which essentially is a social survey.  It is a 

combination of monitoring forms, so that we can collate some of the statistics that you have mentioned now, 

but also to learn what those interactions are between the social and the physical.  

 

One of the things we have now established is that 25% of Lancaster West households are overcrowded.  When 

we think of what we are doing to the property and the physical infrastructure, we need to consider how we can 

alleviate that.  What are the opportunities for garage conversions, for example, or infills and all that sort of 

thing?   

 

Equally, 10% of households are in properties that are not accessible to them from a mobility point of view.  Of 

our 12 blocks, only one has a lift currently.  Even where you would expect flat, level access, there is quite a 

sizeable step into a lot of properties.  Those really practical things, although quite mundane, are what residents 

often come in and talk to us about.   

 

One of the things we are doing is introducing a local lettings policy.  Rather than submitting an 80-page 

document to the community and saying, “What do you think of this?” we are presenting a blank sheet of paper 

where the relevant Residents’ Associations have held workshops with independent facilitators.  The good thing 

there is they are then engaged and aware of the dilemmas we face given the paucity of social housing.  We can 

say, “There is a shortage.  How would you prioritise things?”  It has been really interesting to see those very 

adult-to-adult conversations between what, legally, are landlords and residents.  That certainly helps in terms 

of how we engage.   

 

Page 18



 

 
 

As part of the discussions we have had, three themes have come out to try to shape a neighbourhood strategy, 

in terms of how we can support the social aspect as a housing provider.  One is employability, as you 

mentioned, Shaun, and skills.  One is health and wellbeing, which again is not surprising given the context we 

are operating in.  The other is community cohesion, but what I would say is that compared to other estates I 

have worked in the resilience of the Lancaster West community is simply breathtaking.  It has been key to the 

fact that the community has been as cohesive as it is, and relatively engaged, positive and constructive moving 

forwards.   

 

In terms of what we are doing to meet the diverse needs that are apparent, obviously we are considering a 

range of development activities, particularly around English as a second language.  There are about 5% of 

households on Lancaster West where at least one household member does not speak English.  Now, the 

pragmatic way around this is often to discuss with the household members who do speak English, but there are 

all manner of situations - for example, rent collection or domestic violence - where it is not appropriate to 

speak to other household members.  By recruiting from the communities that I mentioned earlier on in our 

discussion, we were able to overcome the language barriers and the literacy barriers.  In the Lancaster West 

context what has been pivotal is the trust barriers.  For example, advertising specific drop-ins for our Somali 

residents and putting a picture in our monthly newsletter saying, “Here is a colleague who has come from your 

community and she is here to engage with you”.  That has really resonated.   

 

That word of mouth effect has been key, we have found, in publicising.  “Hey, they’re doing things differently.  

They actually seem to be trying here.  We’ve said, ‘You’re not meeting our community’s needs’.  They’ve 

listened.  Let’s give this person a chance”.  I would say 2,000 is a lot of residents, but at the same time it is 

only 2,000 people.  We have 25 members of staff who speak 10 community languages other than English.  

Every positive interaction that our frontline staff have, from all the different communities, is starting slowly to 

move us in the right direction and help us as a public agency to be able to provide services to those who need 

them.   

 

For the refurbishment we have talked about the methodology of engagement but in terms of some of the 

outcomes, a couple of examples I would want to mention are in terms of the demonstration flat, where we 

essentially said, “We are costing up all of the ideas.  There are a range of kitchens, bathrooms, heating options 

and so on.  Tell us what you like and do not like about each of them”.  What comes out is where different 

strategies, which in their own right have noble aims, sometimes are not providing what users - residents in 

design terms are essentially users of our properties - need.   

 

I will give an example of something like a sink.  In terms of trying to save water, landlords are increasingly 

putting in smaller sinks.  However, to your overcrowded family that is the worst possible thing you can do.  It is 

sometimes as simple as saying, “That is a good point.  Let us give you larger sinks”.  Or they may want ablution 

facilities with wet-rooms and so on.  By making sure you break down those barriers to people being engaged 

with you, you actually - we hope, once we get to start doing the physically refurbishment - will deliver an 

outcome that meets the needs of the users and residents.  

 

Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair):  Just following through on that before we invite Councillor Taylor-Smith 

and Mr Goldring to come in, you talked about refurbishment, improving facilities and the housing angle and 

you touched upon community cohesion as well.  The question is: what kind of social infrastructure are you 

providing or you have enhanced for those deprived BAME members of the community that make up the 

majority of the estate, particularly older people?  Quite rightly, there is focus on the youth, their job 

opportunities, their welfare, their wellbeing and their future, but older people, in these communities 

particularly, feel isolated.  There are major barriers.  Are they benefitting in terms of activities that you have 

Page 19



 

 
 

nurtured or facilitated to give them greater confidence, as well as isolation and the anxiety they have from 

what they have faced? 

 

Councillor Kim Taylor-Smith (Deputy Leader, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  In short, 

yes.  If you look at us as a borough and look back at our track record in terms of how we are assessed and 

rated in terms of all forms of care, including adult care, then I think we can demonstrate that that is something 

that we invest a lot of money in and take a lot of support.  Specifically, in terms of the immediate area of 

Lancaster West, we have a scheme at the moment for a new adult social care hub.  We are now talking to local 

residents about how that might be incorporated within wider community work at that one centre.  No, it is 

something we look to support and continue to support. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair):  Does that take into consideration cultural and social practices which may 

be different?  Aspirations may be different, coming from the faith that they follow.  Is that sensitively 

managed? 

 

Councillor Kim Taylor-Smith (Deputy Leader, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  Yes.  

Again, we have some very, very good organisations locally that we link through to, which cover all  

cross-sections and diversity.  We are looking at providing specific spaces for specific ethnicity groups as well, to 

allow them to have that space.  What we find with a lot of people’s requests, is they want to have that identity 

space provided, rather than being into a general community.  That is coming out, certainly as far as the initial 

reviews that are coming back from our asset review. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair):  Mr Goldring, do you want to add anything? 

 

Doug Goldring (Director of Housing Management, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  I 

would just say there is an overall Recovery Plan that sets out what the offer is over the next few years, in terms 

of the recovery of the community that has been affected by this terrible tragedy.  I do not know if you have 

had sight of that.   

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  We have not. 

 

Doug Goldring (Director of Housing Management, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  That 

might be something that we could forward on. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair):  Louise, if you can comment or add to what you heard.  There is also a 

question related to the GLA and your work.  You have heard of what is being done by the Borough and its 

partners and local community.  What can councils across London do to understand diversity in their 

communities better?  A further question: what can the Mayor do in terms of strategic work to promote good 

practice and learning lessons from what is being done in RBKC? 

 

Louise Duggan (Area Manager, NW Regeneration Team, GLA):  Thank you.  I am really pleased that you 

asked me to come in on this.  I would just like to reinforce the comments from Councillor Taylor-Smith that we 

are public agencies.  The GLA is, by definition, a strategic agency.  When we work in various boroughs we 

always look to the Council as the local steward, if you like.  We do not presume to know more than them but 

we want to work with them.  If I was to distil the places where it works well, it is where you have good anchor 

organisations.  It is perhaps even a level below the local authority.   

 

Page 20



 

 
 

I spoke about working with the Westway Trust.  The work we are doing there is designed so that the range of 

different people in that community get to define what will happen and will get their needs on the table.  It is 

looking at the assets that already exist and how they might be repurposed or how they might be developed to 

meet the needs and aspirations of that community.  That is not predefined.  That will evolve through the 

process of working together on it.   

 

I would also just name-check the Portobello Business Centre, who have been so good at having an even more 

fine-grained relationship with local businesses, being able to have those relationships and get the help from 

both ourselves and RBKC out to the business community.  I use that to demonstrate the characteristic that I 

think is definitive.  We need to be humble and we need to look for the partners, both at the local authority 

level and within local communities.   

 

An example I can cite that you will probably be aware of is the Granville Centre in Brent.  It is in the context of 

significant change in Kentish Town.  That was a community asset that was being used but was being used in 

quite a loose and low-intensity way. Given the context of change and growth that is happening - which I 

appreciate is not the context of West Lancaster Estate - it was about repurposing that and fine-tuning the 

offer within that building, leveraging that asset, using it to its full extent and broadening the access beyond 

the established but quite low-intensity use happening there.  That is just a really good example.  There are a 

mix of community child care, self-defined community activities and work spaces.  We need to be more efficient 

in how we use assets and how we make sure that they meet the needs of local communities.  We do not 

presume to know that from City Hall, we work with partners.  That is the definition.   

 

Speaking to your point about what the GLA and what the Mayor can do, there is a whole range of work that is 

being looked at by our Social Policy Team that I will not pretend to be able to summarise, but looking at our 

core work, the Good Growth Fund, £70 million across four years that we have to invest in specific places and 

specific initiatives, one of the strong steers that we have had set for us by the current administration, by the 

London Economic Action Partnership, is to broaden the range of people that we work with.  Leaning on the 

good relationships and the strong relationships that we have with the boroughs but expanding the range of 

people that we work with.   

 

If you go back through our programmes you can track very clearly how we have gone from zero funding being 

awarded to civil groups and community-based groups up to a good third of the organisations -- we can check 

that figure, because I am speaking from long-term memory here.  The ramping up of the range of 

organisations that we engage with and we support.  That is a very significant evolution in how we do 

regeneration from City Hall.  It is going to communities that can help to define from their perspective what is 

going on and what their objectives are. 

 

It is also, again, speaking to the point that public investment and publicly held assets, assets that we hold in 

common and use as groups, need to do more than one job in this day and age.  It is multifunctional spaces and 

opportunities that are the most compelling in London at the moment.   

 

One other thing that I would finally mention is Crowdfund London, which is a crowdfunding platform that 

specifically targeted our community initiatives and community defined initiatives.  That whole range, from the 

mega investments of the OPDC or the Olympics through to the ability to influence what is happening and how 

change happens in your area, is a big part of ensuring that people feel part of change, rather than that change 

happens to them or is done to them.   

 

Page 21



 

 
 

Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair):  Just one final question, Chairman, a very tiny question.  Do you think that 

from RBKC’s experience in the aftermath of the tragic incident you have learned enough in order to have a 

kind of structure or model that can help us in terms of preparedness or something that can be used to tackle a 

similar situation, God forbid it were to happen? 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Can we leave that?  I will be covering something similar to that in my last two 

questions, so we will come to that later. 

 

Navin Shah AM (Deputy Chair):  No problem.   

 

Dr Onkar Sahota AM:  Some of my colleagues may have already covered part of this question.  What 

happened here was a very traumatic experience for a community.  Not only did the buildings burn down but 

people’s lives were lost.  People’s lives were ruined.  They have lost confidence in the local council.  How do 

you start building up that trust and that resilience?  I have not heard anything about the mental health of 

those people.  How do you start pulling together those individuals so that they become better members of the 

community and the community then builds up resilience and the social capital for its future?  What have we 

done about that? 

 

James Caspell (Neighbourhood Director for Lancaster West, Royal Borough of Kensington and 

Chelsea):  From an operational point of view and in terms of the interactions, as I have mentioned, we are 

based on the estate.  You are all welcome to come and see for yourselves.  We are entirely open.  When there is 

somebody at work, residents are welcome to come in.  There is no need to make appointments or phone ahead 

and so on.  We were talking about businesses earlier.  We are baselining a seed-bed centre, if you like, Baseline 

Studios, where there are a number of community organisations.  The Residents’ Association is based there as 

well. 

 

Being approachable and being accountable are paramount, as I said before, in terms of building it up, 

conversation by conversation, seeing every inquiry or complaint as an opportunity to show that we are public 

servants, residents pay our wages and we are here for them.  If you speak to residents, as I am sure you are 

already aware, that was not their perception of the housing services that they were receiving before.   

 

In terms of the mental health piece, we are still not in a place where all public agencies are fully aware of the 

impact this is going to have, particularly on younger people, in terms of trauma manifesting itself later down 

the line.  The Grenfell Recovery Strategy is, if you like, a joint strategic needs assessment for that area as a 

consequence of the disaster.  It talks about the ripple.  You have the survivors and bereaved, you have the 

people who knew somebody who lost somebody, and you have the tower blocks in Silchester Estate, 50 metres 

away, looking at what was unfolding.  The impact that it is having means that we cannot use yesterday’s 

solutions for today’s problems. 

 

From a housing management point of view, if you take, for example, some of the families with children who 

have moved away and want to come back, they are asking for certain works to be undertaken on their property 

to ordinarily a landlord would not consider, for example, putting up screening on their balconies so their 

children cannot see the tower even though it is covered up.  We are very much devising policies, but more to 

the point services, in response to what residents are telling us.   

 

We are talking about the scale of what has happened.  We do not have the social housing to say, “Do not 

worry, we will move you away”, so people have been in temporary accommodation for a long time, as has been 

well documented.  We are very much forced to be extremely reactive and extremely responsive.  The only way 

Page 22



 

 
 

we can meet those sorts of needs is treating people on a very human level and taking the time to listen to 

people.  We cannot say, “Oh, I will check the policy”, because there is not any policy to react the way that 

residents need us to support them at this time. 

 

Dr Onkar Sahota AM:  Doug, do you want to come in? 

 

Doug Goldring (Director of Housing Management, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  

Building upon that, we have the Recovery Plan, which is something we are consulting with across a number of 

areas.  It focuses on several key themes: young people, jobs and skills, places and spaces, health and wellbeing, 

and diversity.  We have already been out to residents and they have fed into this.  It is very much with the 

community that we are developing this.  This will be signed off in totality in the autumn.  It is not just us 

saying, “This is what we are going to do for you and this is how we are going to recover”.  It has to come from 

the people who actually are suffering and dealing with the tragedy on a daily basis.   

 

Dr Onkar Sahota AM:  How did the National Health Service (NHS) respond to this?  Did the NHS up its game 

in terms of making counsellors and psychotherapists available?  Have you had a good response from the NHS? 

 

Councillor Kim Taylor-Smith (Deputy Leader, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  Very 

good.  Clearly, we work in really close partnership with the NHS and they have linked through with us and 

provided tremendous support.  Just to acknowledge the point that you are making, this is a lifetime of support 

that people are going to require.  We can certainly see that there is an escalation of PTSD and issues with 

people being affected by that.  Through the Recovery Plan there is use of the NHS, use of key worker services, 

use of the communities themselves and the community and grant-funded organisations that are there.  We are 

working in partnership with all of them. 

 

Dr Onkar Sahota AM:  Thank you.   

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Just for our last two questions, I will direct these at Councillor Kim  

Taylor-Smith.  What assurances can the Council give that support to be available for the long term, given that 

you do not know what those long-term future needs will be?  I come from RBKC.  I was born there.  There is a 

rich history of local organisations: Harrow Rugby Club, Pepper Pot, Meanwhile Gardens.  To what extent are 

you looking to use those local organisations to provide the support, as well as your own professional staff, in 

the future?  Has that been plotted out far into the future? 

 

Councillor Kim Taylor-Smith (Deputy Leader, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  Far into 

the future.  This is something we are working on.  In terms of finances, although people always said we had the 

most reserves of any London borough we were probably ranked about number seven.  We are probably right at 

the bottom now.  Quite rightly, we have expended the majority of our reserves in order to address the 

immediate impact of the fire, which was a loss of 4% of our housing. 

 

That has put us in a position where it is going to be very difficult for us.  We are going to need support and we 

are going to need that working support with all the organisations.  We are in the process of putting our latest 

budgets together.  We have costed that within the short-term horizon.  It is a concern to us and it is something 

that we are going to have to look at moving further out, in terms of the long term. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  OK.  How will the Council use and share the learning it has acquired through 

the resident-led approach, in Lancaster West in particular and the refurbishment process as well?  How will you 

Page 23



 

 
 

roll that approach out to other estates?  What was very interesting, James, was that you talked about 

overcrowding.  Does that lead me to believe you will be building additional space on the estate? 

 

James Caspell (Neighbourhood Director for Lancaster West, Royal Borough of Kensington and 

Chelsea):  That is something that has come from the ideas day.  That is something that residents have talked 

about.  There are a range of garages.  We have talked about top-hatting on some blocks and about identifying 

opportunities for infill.  At this stage they are ideas.  We are looking at the costings.  We are looking at the 

implications.  Some of them will cause more disruption than others.   

 

The thing I would say, as well, is that the learning at Lancaster West will not necessarily be as applicable to 

other estates.  Because of the mental health issues, even something like upgrading somebody’s kitchen we are 

finding is a far more disruptive and traumatic experience than would ordinarily be the case.  Social housing, as 

you know, has a range of issues facing it currently, largely, I believe, due to a shortage of the supply of it.  We 

have inherited a diverse range of residents who have a range of challenges.  We have a number of residents 

who are older - I mentioned accessibility - and they are living with a greater range of disabilities as well. 

 

What we are certainly learning is the need to engage with residents and listen to them and at least be seen to 

explore their ideas, rather than take a paternalistic approach of, “No, we are not going to do that because that 

will not work here”, even if, from experience, myself and other colleagues think that in the long term it is not 

going to work.  Doug can probably talk about how it might apply to the wider borough. 

 

Doug Goldring (Director of Housing Management, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  

Certainly, my learning since I have been at RBKC is that actions are the only things that matter.   

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  That is an interesting comment. 

 

Doug Goldring (Director of Housing Management, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  

Ultimately, we are dealing with a group of residents, not just on Lancaster West but across the borough, who 

have absolutely zero trust in authority and certainly the local authority in terms of delivering housing services.  

When you are starting in that context you have to plan in a much more organised way and understand that 

things you want to bring in and things you want to do to deliver improvements will take you longer, but you 

will bring the residents, who are paying for that service and are recipients of that service, with you.   

 

That has been a different way of looking at every aspect of the services that we deliver.  At the moment, we 

are working with a large number of residents across the borough in terms of shaping what those services will 

look like in the future and what things matter to them.  That will be within the context of our current delivery.  

Clearly there are financial constraints and the rest of it, but we are not in a position where we can ever make a 

decision without consulting with the residents who receive the changes in those decisions first.  Usually there is 

a modicum of trust in the delivery.   

 

As a landlord you are often able to make those decisions and say where you are going, because it seems 

reasonable, whilst in this context it feels that we are not in that position.  Actually, we are very much discussing 

things right from the selection of small contractors, who carry out the satisfaction survey, to wider issues with 

our residents now.  That is a sea change in terms of the delivery at RBKC. 

 

Councillor Kim Taylor-Smith (Deputy Leader, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  Just to 

add to that, in terms of trust, there are two big areas for us.  One is in terms of how housing was managed.  

That was managed remotely.  Also, there were quite a few regeneration schemes that were in contemplation on 

Page 24



 

 
 

a number of the key estates that were causing great anxiety.  Trust has to be earned and we have to keep 

demonstrating that.  As I mentioned earlier, one of the things about now having the direct responsibility for 

housing is that we can be transparent.  They can come to meetings and we say it in all the meetings.  That is 

an important component part.  People have welcomed that.  I welcome the fact that [attendance at ] all of our 

tenants’ consultancy meetings now is increasing.  More people are coming and different people are coming.  

That is one way of restoring that.   

 

As far as the procurement of additional housing is concerned, we put a stop on all regeneration immediately in 

the immediate aftermath and have reaffirmed that.  It saddens me that people still have that fear, even though 

I have written to people, we have spoken in council meetings and we are talking about no regeneration.  

People still think that there must be this hidden agenda.  Hopefully what we are doing at Lancaster West will 

help restore that and give those people that view and that bit more confidence.  It is going to take an awful lot 

of time. 

 

As far as how we are going to deliver and address our housing shortage within the borough and our long list of 

people wanting to move to the borough, we, again, have been doing an exercise not just on council-owned 

land where we can do infill and improvement, but also where we might be able to work with third parties.  We 

are looking at our housing and housing planning in terms of how we apply our planning for onsite 

development, rather than having money to spend because we do not have the sites available.  I am quite 

encouraged.  That is something we will talk about in greater detail at one of the forthcoming council meetings, 

to set out what we believe our ability is in terms of delivering longer-term housing for the borough.  It goes 

back to your earlier question, and it is fair to say it is something we are going to have to look at quite carefully 

in terms of viability and being able to do that moving forward. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Yes.  That ends our formal questions, unless any of our guests have a 

comment or closing statement they would like to make.  OK.   

 

I would just like to say this, James, just to push back a little bit.  I think your team is doing quite a good job 

and does have a lot of lessons that it could be giving to people about the way in which you are interacting with 

people.  I know this because some of my friends live on the estate and we had the conversation.  I think it is 

tough for you and it is tough for the residents but there is learning there that other housing teams across the 

country - forget just London - could learn from.  The interaction between yourselves, the residents and our rich 

tapestry of voluntary organisations should be learned and built on.  In the future that will be the mechanism 

that carries the residents for 10, 15, 25 years, because ultimately, in my opinion, the residents are going to 

want and need a certain level of responsibility and autonomy in order to build trust.  If they are done to and 

done for, they may not ever get there.  Doug, did you want to say something? 

 

Doug Goldring (Director of Housing Management, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea):  It 

makes you re-evaluate what the role of a landlord is.  The history of landlords doing things to the residents 

without involving them is a lesson learnt here, where we need to change. 

 

Shaun Bailey AM (Chairman):  Both yourself and the Council are building capacity in these communities so 

they have the understanding and ability to ask the right questions and challenge in the right way to get 

changes that they want.  That is a legacy.  That brings us to the end of our formal discussion.  I would like to 

thank our guests for their attendance and their very helpful contributions to the discussion. 

 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



 

                                                                      

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Summary List of Actions  
 

Report to: Regeneration Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 
 

Date: 31 January 2019 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 
 
 
1. Summary  

 
1.1 This report sets out the actions arising from previous meetings of the Regeneration Committee. 

 
 
2. Recommendation  
 

2.1 That the Committee notes the completed and closed actions arising from previous 

meetings of the Committee. 

 

 

Action arising from the Committee meeting on 5 September 2018 

 

Item Topic Status For Action  
 

5 Social Regeneration in Neighbourhoods 

 

The Committee delegated authority to the Chairman, in 

consultation with the Deputy Chair, to agree any output 

from the Committee’s meeting on the social 

regeneration of neighbourhoods in North Kensington 

and any additional activity to support the Committee’s 

scrutiny investigation of the social regeneration of 

neighbourhoods. 

 

 

 

Completed.  This 

delegation was 

not used. 

 

 

Scrutiny Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

Cont … 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 4



        

6 Regeneration Committee Work Programme 

 

The Committee delegated authority to the Chairman, in 

consultation with the Deputy Chair, to agree the terms 

of reference and scope for the Committee’s scrutiny 

review of the barriers to employment experienced by 

young Londoners and any other activity to support that 

review.  

 

It was agreed that the Committee’s meeting slot on 

6 November 2018 be used for a site visit to support the 

Committee’s scrutiny review of the social regeneration of 

neighbourhoods and that authority be delegated to the 

Chairman, in consultation with the Deputy Chair, to 

agree the arrangements for that site visit. 

 
 

 

 

Completed.  This 

delegation was 

not used. 

 

 

 

 

Completed. This 

delegation was 

not used. 

 

 

 

Action arising from the Committee meeting on 4 July 2018 

 

Item Topic Status For Action  
 

9 Regeneration in London’s Royal Docks 

 

The Committee delegated authority to the Chairman, in 

consultation with the Deputy Chairman, to agree any 

output from the Committee’s meeting on the 

regeneration of the Royal Docks Enterprise Zone in the 

London Borough of Newham and any addition activity to 

support the Committee’s scrutiny investigation of the 

regeneration of the Royal Docks. 

 

 

 

Completed.  A 

roundtable 

meeting with 

community 

representatives 

was held during 

September 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28



        

Action arising from the Committee meeting on 16 May 2018 

 

Item Topic Status For Action  
 

9 Regeneration Creating Employment Opportunities 

 

The Committee agreed to delegate authority to the 

Chairman in consultation with the Deputy Chair, to agree 

any output from the Committee’s meeting on the 

regeneration and employment opportunities in London 

and the arrangements for a site visit to support the 

Committee’s work on this subject. 
 

 

 

Completed.   

The Committee 

undertook a site 

visit to the 

Southwark 

Construction 

Skills Centre on 

24 May 2018.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Action arising from the Committee meeting on 6 February 2018 

 

Item Topic Status For Action  
 

6 Making London a Smart City, Digital Connectivity 

and Regeneration 

 

During the discussion the Chief Digital Officer, GLA, 

undertook to provide details of the governance 

arrangements for the London Office for Technology and 

Innovation once it had been established. 

 

 

 

 

 

Closed.  The 

Committee may 

wish to revisit this 

topic in the 

future. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chief Digital Officer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Legal Implications 
 
3.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 

 

4. Financial Implications 
 

4.1   There are no financial implications to the Greater London Authority arising from this report. 

 

 

 

Page 29



        

 

List of appendices to this report:  None 
 
 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

 

Contact Officer: Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officer 

Telephone: 020 7983 6559 

Email: teresa.young@london.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 30

mailto:teresa.young@london.gov.uk


 

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Review of GLA Housing Zones 
Programme 

Report to: Regeneration Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 31 January 2019 
 

This report will be considered in public 
 
 

 

1. Summary 
 
1.1. This report sets out the background for a meeting with invited guests to discuss the Greater London 

Authority’s (GLA) Housing Zones (HZ) programme. 
 

 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 That the Committee agrees the areas for consideration set out in paragraph 4.1 of the 

report and notes this report as background to the discussion with invited guests regarding 

the GLA Housing Zones programme and notes the subsequent discussion. 

 

2.2 That the Committee delegates authority to the Chairman, in consultation with the Deputy 

Chair, to agree any output from the Committee’s meeting on the GLA Housing Zones 

Programme and any additional activity to support the Committee’s scrutiny investigation. 

 

 

3. Background 
 

3.1 HZs feature a defined geographic area, take a regional/strategic view, and use public funding to 

unlock development and leverage private investment. Their primary purpose is to facilitate housing 

delivery.  30 HZs have been designated, of which 20 HZs are funded by the GLA. 

 

3.2 A total of £600 million in funding has been made available by the Mayor and the Government for the 

construction of 75,000 new homes over ten years between 2016-2026.  The programme will also 

provide 150,000 associated jobs over the next ten years.  The funding pot consists of £200 million of 

GLA grants and £400 million of loans to local authorities and developers.  
 

3.3 The HZ guidance1 states that regular progress reports will be required and HZ boroughs/partnerships 

will need to provide comprehensive management information including on progress.  In spite of this, 

there is little information available on the progress of each HZ, or the programme as a whole. 

                                                 
1 https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/housing-and-land/increasing-housing-supply/housing-zones 
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5

https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/housing-and-land/increasing-housing-supply/housing-zones


    

 

 

 
 

 

4. Issues for Consideration 
 

4.1 Members may wish to consider: 

 The overall progress and delivery of the programme; 

 The speed of delivery and what obstacles need to be overcome; 

 Whether the use of public monies has or has not helped bring forward delivery (which was the 

original aim); and 

 What were the main findings from the 2016 Mayoral review and what changes were made as a 

result?  

 

Invited guests 

4.2 The following guests have been invited to the meeting: 

 David Lunts, Executive Director for Housing & Land, Greater London Authority;  

 Andrew Taylor, Director of Planning, Countrywide Properties;  

 Councillor Shama Tatler, Lead Member for Regeneration, London Borough of Brent; 

and 

 Aktar Choudhury, Operational Director, Regeneration, London Borough of Brent. 

 

4.3 The Committee is recommended to delegate authority to the Chairman, in consultation with the 

Deputy Chair, to agree any output from the meeting. 

 

4.4 The Committee may wish to undertake further activity to support this scrutiny investigation, for 

example holding a community roundtable, and it is therefore recommended that the Committee also 

delegate authority to the Chairman, in consultation with the Deputy Chair, to agree the arrangements 

for any additional activity. 

 

 

5. Legal Implications 
 

5.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 

 

6. Financial Implications 
 

6.1 There are no financial implications to the GLA arising from this report. 

 

 
  

Page 32



    

 

 

 

List of appendices to this report: None 

 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

 

Contact Officer:  Riina Heinonen, Scrutiny Manager 

Telephone:  020 7983 4510 

E-mail:  riina.heinonen@london.gov.uk  

 

Page 33

mailto:riina.heinonen@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



 

                                                                    

 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Regeneration Committee Work 
Programme  

 

Report to: Regeneration Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 31 January 2019 

This report will be considered in public 

 
 
 
1. Summary  

 
1.1 This report sets out progress on the Regeneration Committee’s work programme for the remainder 

of the 2018/19 Assembly year. 

 

 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 That the Committee notes the progress on its work programme as set out in the report. 

 

2.2 That the Committee agrees to use its meeting slot on 6 March 2019 for a review of the 

work of the Greater London Authority’s Regeneration Team and delegates authority to 

the Chairman, in consultation with the Deputy Chair, to agree the scope for that meeting.  

 

 

3. Background 
 
3.1 The Annual Meeting of the Assembly on 10 May 2018 agreed meeting slots for the Regeneration 

Committee for the remainder of the 2018/19 Assembly Year.  The Committee may choose to use the 

meetings lots for formal meetings, site visits, informal meetings or other engagement activities.  The 

Committee is not going to use its meeting slot on 14 February 2019.  The topic for the remaining 

meeting slot is set out below: 

 

Date Topic 

 

6 March 2019 

 

Review of the Greater London Authority’s (GLA) 

Regeneration Team’s work  

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



        

 

4. Issues for Consideration  
  

 Work Programme for the Remainder of the Assembly Year 

 

 Review of the Housing Zones Programme 

4.1 The Committee used its meeting slot on 5 December 2018 to receive a briefing on Housing Zones in 

advance of its discussion with invited guests on Housing Zones at its meeting in January 2019.  The 

report at Agenda Item 5 gives more information on this topic. 

 

 Review of the GLA Regeneration Team’s Work 

4.2 It is proposed to use the Committee’s meeting slot on 6 March 2019 for a review of the work of the 

GLA’s Regeneration Team.  It is recommended that the Committee delegates authority to the 

Chairman, in consultation with the Deputy Chair, to agree the scope for that meeting. 

 

 

5. Legal Implications 
 

5.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 
 
6. Financial Implications 

 

6.1 There are no financial implications to the GLA arising from this report. 

 

 

List of appendices to this report: None  

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None  

 

Contact Officer:  Riina Heinonen, Scrutiny Manager 

Telephone:  020 7983 4510 

E-mail:  scrutiny@london.gov.uk 

 

Page 36

mailto:scrutiny@london.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Minutes
	Minutes - Appendix 1 - Transcript of Social Regeneration of Neighbourhoods

	4 Summary List of Actions
	5 Review of GLA Housing Zones Programme
	6 Regeneration Committee Work Programme

